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Plainti {1 | - c:cs the following based

upon Plaintiff’s personal knowledge as to itself and the investigation of Plaintiff’s
counsel as to all other matters, which included, among other things, a review of
Quality Systems, Inc.’s (“QSI” or the “Company”) public documents, conference
calls and announcements, United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) filings, wire and press releases published by and régarding QSI, and
securities analysts’ reports and advisories about the Company. Many facts
supporting the allegations contained herein are known only to Defendants or are
exclusively within their custody or control. Plaintiff believes that further
substantial evidentiary support for the allegations set forth below will exist after a
reasonable opportunity for discovery.

L. SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1. This is a federal securities fraud class action brought on behalf of all

persons or entities, other than Defendants and their affiliates, who purchased or
otherwise acquired QSI common stock during the period from May 26, 2011
through July 25, 2012, inclusive (the “Class Period”), and were damaged thereby.
This action seeks to recover damages caused by Defendants’ violations of Sections
10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and
Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

2. As alleged herein, QSI and its senior executives made a series of
materially false and misleading stafements concerning the Company’s purportedly
strong growth prospects and favorable earnings guidance for fiscal years 2012 and
2013. At the time Defendants made these statements, they knew or recklessly
disregarded that, contrary to their representations, QSI’s business was slowing
significantly.

3. Defendant QSI develops and sells practice management software to
medical and dental providers, including software related to scheduling and billing.

Prior to and during the Class Period, QSI portrayed itself as a high-growth

-1- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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company, repeatedly touting its “record growth” in revenue and earnings, and
robust “pipeline” of business that contained hundreds of millions of dollars of
software sales that the Company sought to realize within the next six to eight
months. QSI also repeatedly issued “bullish” annual guidance to investors, stating
that it was “confident” that it would achieve annual growth rates in eamin‘gs per
share (“EPS”) well in excess of 20%. Based on these representations, analysts
highlighted QSI's “continued growth opportunities,” issued consensus estimates
in-line with, or higher than, the Company’s own guidance, and repeatedly
recommended that investors purchase the stock. In turn, QSI’s stock price
increased dramatically, rising 45% from the beginiling 0f 2011 to reach an all-time
and Class Period high of $50.70 on September 27, 2011.

4. By the time the Class Period began, analysts had started to question
whether QST’s growth rates, and the corresponding appreciation in its stock price,
were sustainable in light of potential saturation in its principal markets. For
example, on May 23, 2011, an analyst issued a report questioning whether
investors could “expect revenue and earnings growth to accelerate to a level that
can support ﬁnther share [price] appreciation.” In response to these questions,
QSI’s most senior executives denied that the Company’s business was slowing,
and assured investors that QSI would meet and even exceed market expectations
for growth.

5. For instance, in the fall of 2011, Steven T. Plochocki, the Company’s
CEO, dismissed concerns of a slowdown in QSI’s business as “baseless,” stating
that “[t]here is nothing drying up and there is nothing slowing down.” Plochocki
turther issued guidance which called for QSI to report EPS growth of as much as
33% for the 2012 fiscal year — a figure that Plochocki underscored was “quite
conservative,” and which he stated that the Company was “very confident” it

would achieve. Indeed, in the Company’s SEC filings, it repeatedly assured

| investors that its guidanée was highly reliable because the Company continually
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updated it based on real-time data from all its operating divisions, stating that QSI
engaged in “a continuous reforecasting process, which incorporates inputs from all
opefating entities to determine short term and long term expectations.”
Throughout late 2011 and the end of January 2012, QSI repeatedly affirmed its
bullish guidance for the 2012 fiscal year.

0. These statements were false. Contrary to the statements that QSI’s
business was growing, and that the Company was expected to achieve EPS growth
of as much as 33%, the Company’s business was experiencing a material
downturn.  Specifically, QSI’s new bookings had begun declining in the first
quarter of fiscal 2012, which began on April 1, 2011. The Company’s new
bookings were the contracts it signed with new clients, and were essential to its
ability to drive earnings growth because they created new sources of revenue and
profit. As QSI's new bookings declined, the Company was forced to rely on
contract renewals by existing clients just to maintain its level of earnings (known
as “replacement” business), causing its growth to slow. Further, as a result of the
decline in new bookings, the Company’s financial performance had begun to slow
down by late 2011. Moreover, the Company’s “pipeline” had begun to decrease
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, which began on January 1, 2012.

7. Defendants knew or reckleésly disregarded that QSI’s growth was
materially slowing. Indeed, throughout the Class Period, Defendants were privy to
real-time data concerning the revenues and earnings of each of QSI’s operating
divisions, vand QSI’s guidance was continuously updated based on that real-time
data. Accordingly, Defendants knew or recklessly disregarded that the fiscal 2012
guidance calling for earnings growth of as much as 33% was directly contradicted
by the reality of QSI’s performance.

8. QSI’s fiscal 2012 year ended on March 31, 2012 and, as Defendants
knew, the Company’s actual EPS for fiscal 2012 were far below the purportedly

conservative guidance Defendants had assured the market QSI would achieve.
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}any inkling that QSI had badly missed its guidance until May 7, 2012, when

|| rapidly falling, management was forced to pre-announce its poor annual results.
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Nevertheless, the Company’s senior executives did not say a word about QSI’s

extremely poor performance for more than a month. The market did not receive

Plochocki, responding to a question at an industry conference, stated that the
Company was experiencing delays in closing sales.

9. This comment raised investor concerns about the Company’s fiscal
2012 performance. As a result of these concerns, QSI's stock price declined 17%
over the next two trading days, falling from a closing price of $36.99 on May 6 to a
closing price of $30.99 on May 8, on very high volume. With investors seriously

concerned about the Company’s fiscal 2012 performance and QSI’s stock price

10.  Thus, on May 10, 2012, QSI revealed that, contrary to its prior
statements touting its continued “record” growth, its ability to generate eamings
had materially slowed in fiscal 2012. Specifically, QSI announced that it would
report EPS of between $1.27 and $1.30 for fiscal 2012 — or as much as 36% below
its guidance. The market reacted with surprise and disappointment to this news,
and analysts reported that QSI’s “big miss™ on its guidance “grossly fall[s] short of
our estimates and consensus.” QSI’s stock price immediately declined 6%, falling
from $32.09 to $30.12 on May 10, again on extremely high volume.

11.  To limit this decline, and lay to rest any question that theée results
potentially indicated a longer-term deterioration in QSI’s business, the Company’s
senior executives assured investors that QSI’s poor pefformance was limited to the
2012 fiscal fourth quarter, and issued EPS guidance for the 2013 fiscal year that
called for significant growth of between 20% to 25%. During an analyst |
conference call on May 17, 2012 to discuss the fiscal 2012 results, both Plochocki
and the Company’s CFO, Paul Holt, stated that they were “confident in [their]
ability to deliver on this guidance” and described nine separate initiatives that

purportedly were underway to enable QSI to meet its guidance.

4 CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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12. The assurances were highly material to investors. Following the
May 17 call, analysts reported that these remarks “give[] us comfort that the
factors responsible for a weaker than expected F4Q are transitory and do not
signify a pause in the company’s business momentum,” expressed confidence in
the Company’s growth prospects, and continued to recommend that investors
purchase QSI stock. QSI continued to affirm its highly favorable fiscal 2013
guidanbe in a series of statements during the spring and summer of 2012, including
in proxy materials filed on June 26, 2012, just four days before the fiscal 2013 first
quarter ended.

13. Again, however, these statements were false. The decline that had
occurred in the Company’s business in fiscal 2012 had only exacerbated during the
first quarter of fiscal 2013. As Defendants knew based on their access to real-time
data concerning the Company’s revenues and earnings, QSI’s EPS for the first
quarter of fiscal 2013 had dramatically declined as compared to the year-ago
period.

14, QSI’s fiscal 2013 first quarter closed on June 30, 2012, and the
Companj’s results were dismal. Far from achieving at least 20% growth in
earnings, the exact opposite had occurred: QSI’s net income and EPS had declined
by almost 20%. Significantly, while in possession of this material non-public
information, QSI continued to falsely affirm its fiscal 2013 guidance weeks after
the first quarter closed in proxy materials dated July 13 and July 23, 2012.

15, On July 26, 2012 — a mere three days after QSI affirmed its guidance

— QSI suddenly announced that its EPS had precipitously declined and, as a result,
it was retracting its guidance. QSI disclosed that, compared to the year-ago
quarter, its net income had declined 18% and its EPS had declined 19%, and thus,
it was “not affirming our previous guidance nor providing revised guidance.”

16.  The market reacted with shock. Analysts immediately downgraded
QSI stock, and QSI’s stock price collapsed on its highest trading volume of the |
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| was highly suspicious. Indeed, this was the first sale of stock that Plochocki had
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year, plummeting from $23.63 per share to $15.95 per share on July 26 — a decline
of 33% in a single trading day. By itself, this single-day decline destroyed
approximately $330 million in QSI’s market capitalization.

17.  Defendant Plochocki profited enormously from the scheme described
herein by selling tens of thousands of Company shares at artificially inflated stock
prices during the Class Period. On February 24, 2012, Defendant Plochocki sold

88,500 QSI shares, reaping proceeds of nearly $4 million. This massive stock sale

made in nearly three and a half years, and it was executed at a price which was
near QSI’s all-time high. Through this sale, Plochocki liquidated nearly all — 92%
— of his holdings of QSI common stock just weeks before QSI closed the fiscal
2012 fourth quarter, at a time when he knew or recklessly disregarded that QSI
would not meet its annual earnings guidance.

18.  As summarized above and detailed further herein, the disclosure of
the truth about QSI’s crippled growth prospects had a devastating impact on the
Company’s shareholders, wiping out more than $600 million in shareholder value
and causing substantial damage to the Class. This action seeks to recover the
damages suffered by those investors as a result of Defendants’ fraudulent scheme.
II.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE |

19.  The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a), and SEC Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5. In connection with the acts and conduct

alleged in this Complaint, Defendants, directly or indirectly, used the means and
instrumentalities of interstéte commerce, including but not limited to the mails,
interstate wire, interstate telephone communications, and facilities of the national
securities markets.

20.  This Court has jurisdiction of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 1331 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa.

~6- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




O 0 3 S D kWO N

b RN RN RN N N N e b e e e e e e

Case 8:13-cv-01818-CJC-JPR Document 1 Filed 11/19/13 Page 9 of 46 Page ID #:9

21.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), (c)
and (d). QSI maintains offices and conducts business in this District, and many of
the events and omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in this District.

II. THE PARTIES

A.  Plaintiff

22. prainti |
I /s reflected in the accompanying

certification, incorporated by reference herein, Plaintiff purchased QSI common

stock during the Class Period and suffered damages as a result of the violations of
the federal securities laws alleged herein.

B. Defendants

23.  Defendant QSI is a California corporation that develops and markets
practice management software to medical and dental providers, including software
related to scheduling and billing capabilities. QSI maintains offices and conducts
business in this District at 18111 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 700, Irvine,
California. QSI’s securities trade on the NASDAQ under the symbol “QSII.”

24.  Defendant Steven T. Plochocki was at all relevant times QSI’s Chiéf
Executive Officer and a member of the Board of Directors. He also has served as
QSI’s President since January 25, 2012. During the Class Period, Plochocki
reviewed, approved, and signed QSI’s filings with the SEC that contained false and
misleading statements, as detailed herein. Plochocki also reviewed and approved
QSDI’s press releases which contained false and misleading statements. Plochocki
also participated in conference calls with securities analysts in which QSI’s false
and misleading filings with the SEC were presented and discussed, and in which
Plochocki made additional false and misleading statements. Plochocki participated
in those conference calls from QSI’s offices located in this District. As alleged

herein, Plochocki knew or recklessly disregarded at all relevant times that his

-7- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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statements concerning QSI's growth prospects were materially misleading. In
addition, Plochocki had a strong financial incentive to engage in the alleged
misconduct. During the Class Period, Plochocki sold 88,500 shares of his QSI
stock for proceeds of approximately $4 million. |

25.  Defendant Paul A. Holt was at all relevant times QSI’s Chief |
Financial Officer. During the Class Period, Holt reviewed, approved, and signed
QST’s filings with the SEC that contained false and misleading statements, as
detailed herein. Holt also reviewed and approved QSI’s press releases which
contained false and misleading statements. Holt also participated in conference
calls with securities analysts in which QSI’s false and misleading filings with the
SEC were presented and discussed, and in which Holt made additional false and
misleading statements. Holt participated in those conference calls from QSI’s
offices located in this District. ~ As alleged herein, Holt knew or recklessly
disregarded at all relevant times that his statements concerning QSI's growth
prospects were materially misleading.

26.  Defendant Sheldon Razin was at all relevant times the founder of QSI
and the Chairman of its Board. He also served as QSI’s CEO from 1974 until
April 2000, and President from 1974 until April 2000, except for the period from
August 1990 to August 1991. During the Class Period, Razin played an active role
in QSI’s business and remained involved in the Company’s day-to-day business
activities. Razin reviewed, approved, and signed QSI’s filings with the SEC that
contained false and misleading statements, as detailed herein. As alleged herein,
Razin knew or recklessly disregarded at all relevant times that his statements
concerning QSI’s growth prospects were materially misleading.

27.  Plochocki, Holt and Razin; because of their high—ranking positions
and direct involvement in the everyday business of the Company, directly

participated in the management of QSI’s operations, including its reporting

functions and the development of its guidance, had the ability and did control

-8- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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QSI’s conduct, and were privy to confidential information concerning QSI and its
business, operations and financial statenients, as alleged herein. These Defendants
were directly involved in cdntrolling the content and in drafting, reviewing, |
publishing and/or disseminating the false and misleading statements and
information alleged herein, were aware of, or recklessly disregarded, that the false
and misleading statements and omissions were being issued, and approved or
ratified these misstatements and omissions in violation of the federal securities
laws.

IV. BACKGROUND

28.  As noted above, QSI develops and sells practice management

software to medical and dental providers. The principal driver of the value of its
stock was its ability to grow its revenues and earnings by significant amounts each
year. During conference calls and in its SEC filings issued during the Class
Period, the Company repeatedly touted its “strong record of growth,” underscoring
that “[o]ver the past five fiscal years, revenue and earnings per share have grown at
a compound annual grthh rate of 23% and 18%, respectively.” Indeed, in
January 2012, Plochocki emphasized that QSI stock was an attractive investment
because the Company had exceeded analysts’ consensus earnings expectations for
five consecutive quarters. Analysts, in turn, recommended QSI stock largely due

22 &L

to its “very strong growth profile,” “continued growth opportunities,” and track
record of meeting or exceeding consensus estimates for earnings. To boost the
price of QSI stock, it was essential that Defendants continue to report stellar
earnings growth.

29.  However, by the time the Class Period began in May 2011, investors
had begun to question whether QSI could continue to repoi*t significant earnings
growth given potential saturation in QSI’s principal markets. For example,
analysts expressed “concern[]” that “new sales are becoming more difficult,” noted

that the Company’s key physician market had achieved “70% [] penetration,” and

-9- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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reported on “anxiety that the [medical] software market might be more saturated
than previously thought.” As Oppenheimer summarized, investors had come to
wonder whether “peak multiples may be behind us.”

30. To assuage these concerns, Defendants made a series of
misstatements in which they falsely represented that QSI’s growth prospects
continued to be strong, and issued highly favorable EPS guidance for fiscal 2012.
Thus, for example, on May 26, 2011, the first day of the Class Period, Plochocki
announced QSI's fiscal 2011 results and issued EPS guidance to the market for
fiscal 2012 which reflected an extraordinary growth rate. ~Specifically, on a
conference call, Plochocki stated that QSI was in “agreement” with analysts’
consensus estimates for QSI’s fiscal 2012 EPS, which called for QSI to report EPS
of $2.75 per share, representing a growth rate of approximately 30% year-over-
year. Defendants affirmed this guidance in a conference call on July 28, 2011,
when they announced QSI’s fiscal 2012 first quarter results, touting the
Company’s 55% increase in earnings, and assuring investors that “all four of our
business units remain on-target performing to plan.”

31.  These statements were material to investors. Following the issuance
of this guidance, in May and July 2011, numerous analysts recommended that
investors buy QSI stock precisely because of its purported growth prospects. For
example, JPMorgan rated the stock “overweight” and reported that “we feel the
company is now on solid footing to benefit from accelerated growth,” and “we
continue to like the company’s growth prospects.” Similarly, Morgan Stanley
rated QSI stock “overweight” because the “growth story remains solid.” In turn,
the Company’s stock price rose significantly. Between the start of the Class Period
and the end of September 2011, QSI’s stock price increased approximately 13%,
reaching an all-time high of $50.70 on September 27.

32.  On October 27, 2011, QSI held an analyst conference call to discuss

its results for the fiscal 2012 second quarter. Plochocki continued to underscore

-10- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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the Company’s “extraordinary growth,” and increased the range of the Company’s
guidance. Specifically, Plochocki announced that QSI’s business was performing
so well that it would now “up” its guidance to call for EPS growth of
approximately 29% to 33%. He further emphasized that “our confidence going
into this quarter and our fiscal year fourth quarter is very strong,” and the guidance
was actually “quite conservative” in light of the Company’s business opportunities.
Soon thereafter, on November 7, 2011, Plochocki stated in an interview with
Investor’s Business Daily that any “concerns that the federally-funded boom in
digital health care may be slowing” were “baseless,” assuring investors that
“[t]here is nothing drying up and there is nothing slowing down.”

33.  Analysts again reacted positively to these statements. For example,
after the October 27 call, Deutsche Bank reported that QSI was experiencing
“strong growth” and that management “remains optimistic on the state of end
market demand and its ability to continue to drive significant growth.” Similarly,
William Blair reiterated its “outperform” rating on QSI stock, and reported that
QSI “shares have the potential to benefit from strong earnings growth.”

34, On January 26, 2012, the Company announced its results for the third
quarter of fiscal 2012. On a conference call that day, Plochocki again touted QSI’s
“continued record growth” and assured investors that “[o]ur pipeline continues to
build to record levels.” QSI not only affirmed the bullish fiscal year 2012
guidance, but Plochocki again represented that it was extremely conservative and,
if anything, too low. Speciﬁéally, on the January 26, 2012 call, he stated that QSI
had recently upgraded its EPS guidance to as much as 33% growth, and added:
“And actually, quite honestly, we probably have a pretty good shot at 35%.”

35. The statements summarized above were false. At the time that
Defendants made these statements touting the Company’s purported growth, and
issued “bullish” guidance calling for an increase of as much as 33% in the

Company’s EPS, the Company was experiencing a significant slowdown in its

-11- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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business. As noted above, QSI's new bookings had begun declining in the first
quarter of fiscal 2012, which began on April 1, 2011, and the Company’s financial
performance had begun to slow down by late 2011. Moreover, the Company’s
“pipeline” had begun to decrease in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, which began
on January 1, 2012.

36.  QSI’s senior executives were aware of or recklessly disregarded this
slow-down in the Company’s business. Indeed, as noted above, Defendants were
privy to real-time information concerning QSI’s revenues and income, and QSI
engéged in a continuous reforecasting process based on this data. Thus, the true
facts concerning QSI's performance were known to, or recklessly disregarded by,
Defendants.

37.  On March 31, 2012, QSI’s 2012 fiscal year ended, and the Company
had experienced EPS growth that was significantly below what Defendants had
assured the market it would achieve. Although Defendants knew that QSI had
fallen far short of its supposedly reliable and conservative guidance, Defendants
made no disclosure of this fact for weeks. It was not until May 7, 2012, that the
market received its first indication that the Company’s representations concerning
QSI's fiscal 2012 performance may not have been accurate. On that day,
Plochocki attended the Deutsche Bank Health Care Conference. In response to a
question concerning increased competition in the marketplace, Plochocki stated
that, “So yeah, it’s very competitive. The deals are taking a little bit longer to get
done. It’s one of the trends that we’re starting to see a little bit more of.”

38.  This statement raised questions in the market about QSI’s fiscal 2012
perforrnance. As a result of these concerns, QSI’s stock declined 8% on May 7,
declining from $36.99 to $33.98 on very high volume. Further, based on this
statement, certain analysts cut their own forecasts for QSI’s performance on May
8, 2012. JPMorgan, for example, issued a report on May 8, 2012, titled “Trimming
Estimates After Mgmt Commentary,” in which it noted that the surprisingly

-12- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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“downbeat management commentary” had sparked “investor concerns” about the
Company’s ability to close deals quickly, and the impact of this fact on QSI’s
performance. In fesponse to this development, QSI stock declined another 9% on
May 8, falling from $33.98 to $30.99, again on extraordinarily high volume.

39.  Given the investor concerns about the Company’s performance and
the resulting severe negative impact on QSI stock, Defendants were forced to pre-
announce QSI’s disappointing fiscal 2012 results. Thus, on May 10, 2012, the
Company issued a press release announcing that it expected to report EPS between
$1.27 and $1.30 — results which translated to growth rates that were 28% below the
bottom of QSI’s guidance and 36% below the top of the guidance.

40.  Analysts widely reported that these results were “disappointing” and
much worse than expected even considering Plochocki’s “downbeat” remarks on
May 7. For example, Piper Jaffray reported that QSI;S “big miss” on its guidance
“grossly fall[s] short of our estimates and consensus.” Credit Suisse reported that,
“[cJoming on the heels of ... QSII’s management presentations at competitor
conferences, we would suggest weaker results had begun to be discounted in [the]
shares, however these preannounced results were below even revised
expectations.” As a direct result of this-disclosure, QSI’s stock price immediately
declined another 6% on May 10, falling from $32.09 to $30.12 on extremely high
volume.

41.  In an effort to assure investors that QSI’s poor fiscal 2012 results
were a one-time event and did not indicate a more lasting downturn in its business,
Defendants represented that QSI's “big miss” was due to two facts unique to the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, and that “none of the fundamentals [of QSI’s
business] have changed.” First, in the May 10 press release, and in an analyst
conference call on May 17 to discuss the 2012 fiscal year results, Plochocki and
QSI stated that the poor results were caused by delays in closing certain deals prior

to the end of the fourth quarter. Notably, Plochocki assured analysts on the May
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17 call that closing these deals would have a positive impact on the Company’s
2013 revenues, stating that “[s]everal of the deals that we should have gotten done
in the March-end quarter, we have since signed and have since announced to the
marketplace. ... I think the best way to characterize that is that they were seven-
figure deals, and they would have had a significant impact on the quarter. And we
will get the benefit of that in [the] June quarter.” Second, in the May 10 press
release and during the May 17 analyst conference call, Plochocki and Holt
represented that QSI’s fiscal 2012 performance was due to a delay in “recognition
of revenue related to a large customer implementation,” which would not have a
negative impact on the Company’s business going forward.

42.  Moreover, Plochocki and Holt assured the market that the Company’s
pipeline of new business had grown, and issued bullish guidance for fiscal year
2013 calling for EPS growth of between 20% and 25%. During the May 17
analyst call, Plochocki stated that “we remain confident about the growth
opportunities, as evidenced by our [] guidance in the 2013 fiscal year,” and
detailed nine separate initiatives that supposedly would enable the Company to
deliver on its fiscal 2013 guidance. Similarly, Holt underscored that “[w]e are
confident in our ability to deliver on this guidance,” and that the guidance was
calculated using “conservative” assumptions. Plochocki and Holt stated that a key
factor “supporting” their guidance was QSI’s pipeline of business, which they
stated “keeps growing” and was “very deep and vibrant.” Indeed, Plochocki stated
that the pipeline was $189 million, which represented an increase of approximately
13% year-over-year and 3% over the prior quarter. .

43.  Following the May 17 call, analysts reported that, while the fiscal
2012 results were disappointing, the Company’s growth prospects remained strong,
and continued to recommend that investors buy QSI stock. For example, on
May 17, JPMorgan reported that QSI “shares provide compelling value” because

“management commentary on the call indicated the 4Q miss was part of the lumpy
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nature of the business rather than a fundamental change in the end market,” and
“[w]e continue to believe there is ample runway ahead [for growth], and expect

results over the next few quarters to prove this.” Similarly, Sterne Agee issued a

| “buy” recommendation and reported that “[mJanagement’s commentary on the

earnings call gives us comfort that the factors responsible for a weaker than
expected F4Q are transitory and do not signify a pause in the company’s business
momentum. We foresee QSII recovering into the mid-30s (up ~20% from today)
over the next several months as near-term concerns recede and investors regain
confidence in the company’s FY13 outlook.”

44.  In a series of statements during the spring and summer of 2012, QSI
and Plochocki affirmed the favorable fiscal year 2013 guidance, and further stated
that this guidance was a key reason why the Company was superior to its
competitors. For example, at a June 4, 2012 analyst industry conference,
Plochocki represented that the Company’s strong guidance differentiated it from its
competitors, stating that “we are the only company in our sector that has finished
the year and given guidance on the upcoming year for revenue and earnings growth
with a 2 in front of it in those two categories.” On June 26, 2012, just four days
before the first quarter of fiscal 2013 ended, the Company again reaffirmed its
guidancé in preliminary proxy materials filed with the SEC, which included an
open letter to shareholders signed by Plochocki and Razin. In this letter and in
other SEC filings during this period, the Conipany assured investors that its
guidance was reliable because the guidance was continuously updated based on
real-time data, stating that QSI engaged in “a continuous reforecasting process,
which incorporates inputs from all operating entities to determine short term and
long term expectations.” |

45.  Again, however, the statements -conceming QSI’s growth prospects
were false. The slow-down in QSI’s business had not only continued, but had

become even more pronounced during the first quarter of fiscal 2013. Indeed, far
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from growing during the first quarter of fiscal 2013, QSI’s EPS were sharply
declining from the year-ago quarter.  Similarly, contrary to Plochocki’s
representation on the May 17 call that QSI’s pipeline had grown during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2012, the pipeline had shrunk in that quarter.

46.  On July 3, 2012, the SEC sent QSI a comment letter, which was not
made public until after the Class Period, stating that the Company’s disclosures
concerning its guidance were inadequate. In particular, the SEC comment letter
noted that the proxy materials “containfed] very specific projections about the
future performance of Quality Systems” without providing any support, and
instructed QSI to “provide support for these very specific projected figures by
déscribing the assumptions underlying them, including any limitations on those
assumptions or other factors that may cause them not to be realized.” The SEC
warned QSI’s management that, “[s]ince the company and its management are in
possession of all facts relating to a company’s disclosure, they are responsible for
the accuracy and adequacy of the disclosures they have made.” In a subsequent
letter dated July 9, 2012, which also was not made public until the Class Period
ended, the SEC stated that QSI’s proposed revised disclosure offered merely
“generic support and discussion” and was “confusing.” |

47.  QSI's fiscal 2013 first quarter closed on June 30, 2012. As
Defendants knew, contrary to their statements that QSI would achieve 20%-25%
growth in earnings, the opposite had occurred: QSI’s net income and EPS had
declined by almost 20%. Significantly, notwithstanding their knowledge of QSI’s
dismal performance — and despite the fact that the SEC had put Defendants on
notice of the inadequacy of their public disclosures — Defendants continued to
falsely affirm the Company’s fiscal 2013 guidance weeks after the first quarter
closed, in proxy materials dated July 13 and July 23, 2012.

48.  Then, Just three days after affirming its guidance, on July 26, 2012,

QSI stunned the market by announcing its poor first quarter results and
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withdrawing its purportedly reliable and conservative guidance. Specifically, on
that day, QSI announced that its net income had declined 18% and its EPS had
declined 19% as compared to the year-ago quarter. Due to these results, Plochocki
stated that “we are not affirming our previous guidance nor providing revised
guidance.”  Neither Plochocki nor any QSI representative provided any
explanation as to how the Company could have reaffirmed its guidance as recently
as three days ago, when they had known QSI’s first quarter results for several
weeks. QSI also announced that its pipeline had declined significantly.

49.  The market reacted with astonishment. Analysts immediately
downgraded QSI stock, and QSI’s stock price collapsed on its highest trading
volume of the year, falling from $23.63 per share to $15.95 per share on July 26 —
an enormous decline of 33% in a single trading day. This single-day decline

destroyed approximately $330 million in investor value.

V.  DEFENDANTS’ FALSE AND
MISLEADING STATEMENTS AND OMISSIONS

50.  During the Class Period, Defendants represented to investors that
QSI’s growth prospects were strong and its pipeline of expected software sales was
increasing, and issued very favorable EPS guidance for fiscal years 2012 and 2013.
Defendants’ statements were materially false and misleading because, in truth, the
Company’s business was slowing significantly. Accordingly, the guidance for
fiscal years 2012 and 2013 lacked any reasonable basis and/or Defendants were
aware of facts that tended to seriously undermine the accuracy of their statements.
The paragraphs set forth below: (i) identify Defendants’ Class Period statements
and omissions alleged to be materially false and misleading, (ii) set forth when,
where, and by whom they were made, and (iii) summarize why those statements
and omissions were materially false and misleading.

51.  The May 26, 2011 and July 28, 2011 Conference Calls. On May 26,
2011, the first day of the Class Period, QSI held an analyst conference call to
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report its fiscal 2011 fourth quarter and year-end results (the “May 26 Conference
Call”). During this call, Defendant Plochocki stated that QSI was in “agreement
with the consensus view of the analysts in terms of their projections for revenue
and [] EPS for fiscal year 2012.” Analysts’ consensus estimates at that time were |
for QSI to report EPS for fiscal 2012 of $2.75 per share, reflecting a growth rate of
approximately 30% from the prior year. On July 28, 201 1, QSI held an analyst
conference call to report its fiscal 2012 first quarter results (the “July 28
Conference Call”). On the July 28 Conference Call, Plochocki again stated that
QSI was in “agreement with the consensus view of the analysts for revenue and
earnings per share.”

52.  October 27, 2011 Conference Call: On October 27, 2011, QSI held an

analyst conference call to discuss its results for the fiscal 2012 second quarter.

During the conference call, Plochocki praised the “extraordinary growth” that QSI

had experienced in that quarter, and stated that:

As a result of our strong first-half performance and our confidence

in the second half of this year, we are now prepared to up our

general views for the year. More in line with consensus views, we

are now in general agreement with a revenue range of growth of

21% to 24% for the year and an EPS range of growth of 29% to

33% for the year. This is an upgrade from our previous views of
20% to 23% revenue growth and ... 28% to 32% EPS growth. Qur

confidence is strong, we’re bullish on our second half[.]

53. © During the October 27, 2011 call, an analyst asked whether the
Company’s raised guidance was “conservative,” and Plochocki stated that the
guidance was “quite conservative” given that the Company’s pipeline of future
business was so “large:”

And so our confidence going into this quarter and our fiscal year

fourth quarter is very strong. So it gave us the opportunity to take a
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second look at the ranges we had provided historically and gave us

the confidence to up them slightly. And as you know, we’re
typically gquite conservative.

54.  The November 7. 2011 Interview: On November 7, 2011, nvestors’

Business Daily published an interview with Plochocki titled “Quality Systems
Chief Says Boom Just Getting Started.” In that interview, Plochocki denied that
the Company’s business was slowing. Specifically, that article stated as follows:
“Plochocki said worries about flattening and saturation were baseless. ‘There is
nothing drying up and there is nothing slowing down,” he said.”

55.  January 9, 2012 Conference: On January 9, 2012, Plochocki attended
a JPMorgan Global Healthcare Conference (the “January 9, 2012 Conference™).

At the January 9, 2012 Conference, Plochocki again affirmed the upwardly revised
fiscal 2012 guidance as follows:
We are earmarked for a very strong year. Our fiscal year ends
March 31, and we have given analysts prognostications for ...
earnings per share growth [in the] 29% to 34% range.
56.  The January 26, 2012 Conference Call: On January 26, 2012, QSI

held an analyst call to discuss its fiscal 2012 third-quarter results. On that call,
Plochocki touted the Company’s “continued record growth,” and stated that

Our pipeline continues to build to record levels. As leads, RFPs,

online demos, web hits continue to accelerate throughout all of our

business units, we’re setting a very strong foundation for what we

believe is going to be a powerfully robusf period here in the second

year of the stimulus movement.

57. On the call, an analyst noted that, “over the last couple of quarters,
you have been providing us some higher-level guidance in terms of growth,” and
asked for “an update [] on where you stand with respect to this current fiscal year.”

In response, Plochocki stated that:
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1 I think the guidance that we provided last quarter was 21% to 24%
2 revenue growth for the year. That’s the year that will be ending in
3 two months. And then our EPS, I think we upgraded to 29% to
4 34%. And actually, quite honestly, we probably have a pretty good
5 shot at 35% on that bottom one. And then, of course, we'll be
6 announcing guidance on our next call for our fiscal year 2013.
7 58. At the end of the January 26, 2012 conference call, Plochocki again
8 || underscored QSI’s purported favorable growth prospects, as follows:
9 I think what you see here is a company that’s now five straight
10 quarters where we have exceeded analysts’ expectations for
11 revenue growth and earnings per share. We have $183 million
12 pipeline, which is growing. We have categories three and four in
13 your pipeline, which are building, as well, so I think along the lines
14 of the CMS report that came out late October, excuse me, late
15 November, we truly are embarking upon probably a four to eight
16 quarter period of the most robust growth in EHR adoption, and
17 we’re well prepared for it with product and service offerings that
18 we think will serve the shareholder quite well. |
19 The February 7, 2012 Conference: On February 7, 2012, Plochocki
20 || attended the UBS Global Health Care Services Conference (the “February 7, 2012
21 || Conference™). At the February 7, 2012 Conference, Plochocki again stated that the
22 || Company’s pipeline of new business was “continually growing,” as follows:
23 Our sales pipeline; we have $183 million worth of pipeline, the
24 business we intend to close within the next six to eight months.
25 That sales pipeline has grown every quarter since the
26 announcement of the stimulus bill back in February of 2009 and
27 we_view it as continually growing as a result of the fact that the
28 leads that continue to come into our system, the RFPs, are building
20- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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a strong base along those areas.

60.  The statements set forth above in §951-59 were materially false and
misleading. At the time that Defendants made these statements, QSI’s business
had already experienced a material slow-down. As noted above, QSI’s new
bookings had begun declining in the first quarter of 2012, which began on Aprﬂ I,
2011, thereby causing the Company’s earnings growth to slow. Further, the
Company’s financial performance had begun to materially slow down by late
2011. Moreover, contrary to the statements concerning the purported growth in
QSI’s pipeline, QSI’s pipeline had begun to decline in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2012, which began on January 1, 2012, |

61.  May 10, 2012 Press Release and Form 8-K: On May 10, 2012, QSI
issued a press release, which was filed with the SEC on Form 8-K that same day

(the “May 10 Press Release and Form 8-K*). Defendant Holt signed the Form 8-

K. In the press release, QSI preliminarily announced its results for the 2012 fiscal
year, including the fact that it expected to miss its guidance by material amounts,
as described above. QSI also issued highly favorable guidance for fiscal year
2013. Specifically, the May 10 Press Release and Form 8-K stated that: “Quality
Systems’ management also announced annual revenue and earnings per share
guidance for the upcoﬁling 2013 fiscal year. ... [E]arnings per share are expected
to grow between 20 and 25 percent versus the 2012 fiscal year.”

62.  The May 17, 2012 Conference Call: On May 17, 2012, QSI held a
conference call to discuss its 2012 fiscal year results. On that call, Defendants

affirmed the guidance set forth in the May 10 Press Release and Form 8-K.

Defendants also made numerous false statements designed to convince investors
that QSI’s poor 2012 fiscal year results were a one-time event, and that the
Company’s growth prospects remained strong. For example, Defendant Plochocki
stated:

Our performance for fiscal 2012 fourth quarter was impacted due
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to delays in both the closing of several fourth-quarter

opportunities, as well as recognition of revenue related to a large

customer implementation. Looking ahead, we remain confident

about the growth opportunities, as evidenced by our recent

guidance in the 2013 fiscal year. We have stated that we expect

revenues to increase 20% to 24%., earnings per share to erow 20%
to 25%.

Some of the key dial-movers for our upcoming year include, one,
to continue to expand offshore capabilities for software
development and back office functions; two, expand our
international distribution channel; three, continue to maximize
cross-selling opportunities; four, sell more multiple product deals,
like the Norton deal that we recently announced; five, expand
RCM capabilities to dental and hospital markets; six, move
upstream in the hospital sector; seven, be at the forefront of ACO
modeling. At HIMSS in February, we introduced five new
products to aid physicians in that effort. FEight, continue to
compete and win in the 50% of the market that has yet to adopt
electronic medical records. Nine, continue to acquire product and
service offerings that supplement or complement our core offerings

domestically and internationally.

Later in the call, in response to an analyst question concerning the
Company’s ability to meet its guidance, Defendant Plochocki assured investors
that QSI was “very confident” in its ability to deliver on its guidance in light of the

nine initiatives described above:

We have been historically a 20/20 or better company for at least

the last 12 vears. We are earmarking this vear to be the same. We

anticipate that the expansion in those nine areas I addressed twice
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already on this call, I think, are going to give us opportunities to
continue to keep that pace. We are very -- we are very confident in

that.

64.  Similarly, Defendant Holt stated that the Company was confident in
its ability to deliver on its guidance, in significant part because of the purportedly
strong pipeline:

Moving on to our fiscal 2013 guidance, our guidance range of 20%
to 24% revenue growth includes expected growth in all of our
business segments and revenue categories. We are expecting a
slight increase in recurring revenue share of total revenue next
year, primarily on the heels of faster growth in RCM and other

recurring revenue streams. We are confident in our ability to

deliver on this guidance, which is very consistent with our five-

year compound annual growth rate of 23%.

Supporting our confidence in this guidance range are a number of

factors, including our current sales pipeline, growing momentum in

RCM, which Monty will discuss further, increased interest we are
seeing from payor groups and large enterprise customers in
enterprise Ambulatory solutions, as rapid growth in demand for
consulting and other services, additional products and service
capabﬂities as a result of acquisitions and new international market
opportunities.

Our earnings per share guidance of 20% to 25% growth represents
a slight increase compared to our five-year average compound
annual growth rate of approximately 18%, and is consistent with
what we’ve achieved on average over the last two years.

65. In response to an analyst question, Plochocki again attributed the

poor fiscal 2012 results to delays in closing a few deals, and stated that the
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Company’s business remained sound, its pipeline continued to be strong, and the
Company’s first quarter of fiscal 2013 was off to a strong start:
[E]very four to six quarters, we have a quarter like this where the
deals don’t line up the way We would like them to, and we just
don’t get them done. Several of the deals that we should have
gotten done in the March-end quarter, we have since signed and
have since announced to the marketplace. It happens periodically.

None of the fundamentals [of QSI’s business] have changed,

though. Our pipeline is deep. Our categories one and two are
strong. We have a very strong bevy of six- and seven-figure deals
in that pipeline. None of the fundamentals gave us any indications
that we weren’t going to be able to pull some of these deals

through. But the bottom line is that we did close many of them

heading into this June quarter, and we are really off to a pretty

good start for June.
66.  Similarly, later in the call, Plochocki stated:
The takeaway from this is that if the fundamentals have changed,

that would be a different story. But our fundamentals haven’t

changed. Our pipeline keeps growing, categories one and two are
very deep and vibrant for us this quarter. We haven’t seen any
fundamental change to any of the dynamics that have been feeding
into our system for the last two to three years.

67.  In response to another analyst question as to whether the delay in
closing deals during the fiscal year 2012 fourth quarter would “get worse” and
negatively impact QSI’s business in fiscal year 2013, Plochocki flatly denied that
the Company anticipated any deterioration in its performance for fiscal 2013,
stating:

The several deals that took longer than we anticipated in our fourth
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quarter that have entered into closure cycles for our first quarter is

one issue. Whether I am anticipating this to be an impact on our

fiscal 2013. I would say no. It is two different issues. Fiscal 2013,

as we have it earmarked in our four divisions, with the nine points
that we are going to drive, with the deals that we’ve clo'sed, with
the acquisitions we’ve already done, with our intemational
distribution, channel distribution program now underway, we
believe that we are going to be able to continue to grow at 20/20.

68.  The June 26, 2012 Letter to Shareholders: As the first quarter of

fiscal 2013 progressed, Defendants repeatedly affirmed their bullish guidance
calling for EPS growth of between 20% and 25%. For example, on June 26, 2012,
just four days before the fiscal 2013 first quarter closed, QSI filed proxy materials
with the SEC on Schedule 14A. These proxy materials consisted of an Open Letter
to Shareholders signed by Defendants Plochocki and Razin, among others (the
“June 26, 2012 Letter to Shareholders”). In that letter, Defendants stated as
follows:

We are proud of our strong record of delivering earnings growth

and generating superior returns for our shareholders. We are also

confident about our growth prospects. For fiscal 2013, we expect

that revenues will increase in the 20-24% range and we expect

earnings per share to grow by 20-25%.

Led by our Board nominees and management team, we have a

robust strategy in place to enhance our position as a leader in the
healthcare information technology (HCIT) sector and capture
growth potential arising out of demographic, industry and
regulatory developments.

69. The statements set forth above in 9Y61-68 concerning QSI’s

purported growth prospects were materially false and misleading, and the guidance
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for fiscal year 2013 was without any objective basis. At the time that Defendants
made these statements and issued the fiscal year 2013 guidance, QSI’s business
was already experiencing a pronounced downturn. Indeed, far from growing,
QSI’s earnings for the first quarter of 2013 were declining far below the earnings it
had recorded for the prior fiscal year. Moreover, at the time that Defendants made
the statements summarized abové touting the purported continued growth in QSI’s
pipelinek, QSI’s pipeline was declining.

70.  The July 13 and July 23. 2012 Proxy Materials: QSI’s fiscal 2013
first quarter ended on June 30, 2012. As noted above, while Defendants had

falsely assured investors that QSI would report EPS growth of between 20% and
25% for fiscal year 2013, in reality, QSI’s EPS had declined by 19%.
Nevertheless, weeks after the quarter ended, Defendants continued to affirm the
materially false and misleading 2013 fiscal year guidance. Specifically, on
July 13, 2012, Defendants filed QSI’s Definitive Proxy Statement with the SEC on
Schedule 14A, and on July 23, 2012, Defendants filed Additional Definitive Proxy
Materials with the SEC on Schedule 14A (collectively, the “July 13 and July 23,
2012 Proxy Materials”). The July 13 and July 23, 2012 Proxy Materials were
signed by Defendants Plochocki and Razin. In the July 13 and July 23, 2012 Proxy
Materials, Defendants stated, “For fiscal 2013, ... we expect earnings per share to
grow by 20-25%.”

| 71. The statements set forth in §70 were materially false and misleading.
As noted above, at the time Defendants made these statements asserting that QSI’s
EPS for fiscal 2013 would grow by between 20%-25%, they knew that QSI’s EPS
for the first quarter of 2013 had dramatically declined.
VI. DEFENDANTS ACTED WITH SCIENTER

72.  The facts alleged herein establish that Defendants’ misstatements

were intentional and/or reckless. At all times, Defendants Plochocki, Holt, and

‘Razin were well aware of or recklessly disregarded the slow-down in QSI’s
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business. Specifically, these Defendants were personally involved with, and
exercised control over, the determination of what EPS guidance the Company
publicly issued. These Defendants were also privy to real-time data‘reﬂecting the
true revenues and earnings of every QSI operating division. Moreover, as noted
above, QSI stated that it employed a “continuous reforecasting process” pursuant
to which its guidance was continually recalculated based on that data, and these
Defendants were privy to these calculations. Accordingly, during the Class Period,
these Defendants knew or recklessly disregarded that QSI’s guidance calling for
significant growth was completely at odds with the reality of its business, which
was slowing down in fiscal year 2012 and, for fiscal year 2013, was sharply
contracting. .

73.  Indeed, Defendants repeatedly affirmed QSI’s bullish fiscal 2013
guidance weeks after the first quarter had ended, when they knew that QSI's EPS
had declined by 19%. Such misconduct is highly indicative of an intent to decei\}e
and, at a minimum, is severely reckless.

74. In addition, Defendant Plochocki profited enormously from the
scheme to misrepresent the true quality of QSI’s growth prospects. While in.
possession of material, nonpublic information regarding the pronounced slow-
down in QSI’s business, Defendant Plochocki sold substantial amounts of QSI
common stock from his holdings at artificially inflated prices. The price at which
Defendant Plochocki sold his stock far exceedéd the closing price of QSI stock
after the Company announced that its EPS had significantly declined (i.e., $15.95
on July 26, 2012).

75.  On February 24, 2012, Defendant Plochocki sold 88,500 QSI shares
at $43.99 per share, reaping proceeds of $3,893,115. This stock sale was
suspicious in timing and amount because: (i) Defendant Plochocki made this sale
when he was aware that he was misrepresenting QSI’s growth prospects; (ii) prior

to making this massive stock sale, he had made no stock sales for approximatély
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three and a half years; (iii) through this sale, he liquidated nearly all, i.e., 92%, of
his holdings of QSI stock; and (iv) he made these sales at a time when QSI’s stock
price was near its all-time high. As such, Defendant Plochocki’s significant insider
stock sales while in poss.ession of material nonpublic information regarding QSI’s
true growth prospects and financial performance further support a strong inference
of his scienter.

VII. LOSS CAUSATION

76.  Defendants’ wrongful conduct directly caused the economic loss

suffered by Plaintiff and the other members of the Class. The materially false and
misleading statements set forth above were widely disseminated to the securities
markets, investment analysts and the investing public. As a result, Plaintiff and the
other members of the Class purchased QSI securities at artificially inflated prices
and were damaged when the artificial inflation dissipated as a result of partial
corrective disclosures entering the market that revealed QSI's true growth
prospects and financial performance, as set forth ébove at 93 7-40, 48-49.

77.  The decline in QSI’s stock price was a direct and proximate result of
the Defendants’ scheme being revealed to investors and to the market. The timing
and magnitude of QSI’s stock pricé decline negates any inference that the losses
suffered by Plaintiff and the other members of the Class were caused by changed
market conditions, macroeconomic factors, or even Company-specific facts
unrelated to Defendants " fraudulent conduct.

VIII. PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE _

78.  Plaintiff is entitled to a presumption of reliance under Affiliated Ute

Citizens of Utah v. U.S., 406 U.S. 128 (1972) because the claims asserted herein

against Defendants are predicated in part upon material omissions of fact that

Defendants had a duty to disclose. |
79.  Plaintiff is also entitled to a presumption of reliance on Defendants’

material misrepresentations and omissions pursuant to the fraud-on-the-market
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doctrine because, at all relevant times, the market for QSI securities was open,
efficient, and well-developed for the following reasons, among others:

(a) QSI’s stock met the requirements for listing, and was listed and
actively traded on the NASDAQ, a highly efficient market for
securities;

(b) As a public company, QSI filed periodic reports with the SEC;

(c) QSI regularly communicated with public investors via established
market communication mechanisms, including through regular
disseminations of press releases on the national circuits of major
NEeWSWIre services;

(d) QSI was followed by numerous securities analysts employed by major
brokerage firms who wrote reports which were distributed to those
brokerage firms’ sales forces and certain customers; and

(e) The price of QSI securities promptly reacted to the dissemination of
new information regarding the Company, as set forth above. QSI
securities were actively traded throughout the Class Period with
substantial trading volume.

80.  As a result of the foregoing, the market for QSI stock promptly
digested current information regarding QSI from all publicly available sources and
reflected such information in QSI’s stock price. Under these circumstances, all
purchasers of QSI common stock during the Class Period suffered similar injury
through their purchase-of QSI common stock at artificially inflated prices, and a
presumption of reliance applies.

81.  Accordingly, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class did rely
and are entitled to have relied on the i'ntegrity of the market price for QSI
securities, and a presumption of reliance on Defendants’ materially false and

misleading statements and omissions during the Class Period applies.
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IX. NOSAFE HARBOR
82.  The statutory safe harbor applicable to forward-looking statements

under certain circumstances does not apply to any of the false and misleading
statements and omissions pleaded in this Complaint. Many of the alleged false
statements herein are not forward-looking, but concern then-existing facts about
QSI’s financial performance. In addition, any forward-looking statements alleged
to be false herein were not accompanied by meaningful cautionary language
identifying important facts that could cause actual results to differ materially from
those in the purportedly forward-looking statements. Furthermore, to the extent
that the statutory safe harbor would otherwise apply to any statement found by the
Court to be forward-looking, Defendants are liable for those false or misleading
forward-looking statements because at the time each of those statements was made,
the speaker knew that the statement was false or misleading, or the statement was
authorized and/or approved by an executive officer of QSI who knew that the
statement was false or njjsleading when made.
X.  CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

83.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Rules 23(a)

and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of a Class consisting

of all persons or entities, other than Defendants and their affiliates, who purchased
or otherwise acquired QSI common stock during the period from May 26, 2011
through July 25, 2012, inclusive (defined above as the “Class Period™), and were
damaged thereby. Excluded from the Class are Defendants; QSI's affiliates and
subsidiaries; the officers and Directors of QSI and its subsidiaries and affiliates at
all relevant times; members of the immediate family of any excluded person; heirs,
successors, and assigns of any excluded person or entity; and any entity in which
any excluded person has or had a controlling interest.

84.  The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all

members is impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, QSI common shares were
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actively traded on the NASDAQ. As of May 21, 2012, QSI had approximately
59,294,619 shares of common stock issued and outstanding. Although the exact
number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time, Plaintiff believes
that there are at least thousands of members of the proposed Class. Members of
the Class can be identified from records maintained by QSI or its transfer agent(s),
and may be notified of the pendency of this action by publicatidn using a form of
notice similar to that customarily used in securities class actions.

85.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the
Class, as all members of the Class were similarly damaged by Defendants’ conduct
as complained of herein.

86.  Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the
Class and predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of
the Class. Among the questions of fact and law common to the Class are:

(a) whether Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions as alleged
herein violated the federal securities laws;

(b)whether Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions as alleged
herein were material;

(c) whether Defendants Plochocki, Holt and Razin are personally liable
for the alleged misrepresentations and omissions described herein;

(d)whether Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions as alleged
herein caused the Class‘ members to suffer a compensable loss; and

(e) whether the members of the Class have sustained damages, and the
proper measure of damages.

87.  Plamtiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the
members of the Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class
actions and securities litigation. Plaintiff has no interest that conflicts with the
interests of the Class.

88. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair
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and efficient adjudication of this action. = Joinder of all Class members is
impracticable.  Additionally, the damage suffered by some individual Class
members may be small relative to the burden and expense of individual litigation,
making it practically impossible for such members to redress individually the
wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action
as a class action.

XI. CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT1

Vi‘olations Of Section 10(b) Of The Exchange Act
And Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder
(Against All Defendants)

89. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation set forth
above as if fully set forth herein.

90.  During the Class Period, Defendants QSI, Plochocki, Holt and Razin
carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct which was intended to, and
throughout the Class Period, did: (1) deceive the investing public regarding QSI’s
business, operations, growth prospects and the intrinsic value of QSI securities;
(ii) enable Defendants‘ to artificially inflate the price of QSI sécurities;
(iii) enable Defendant Plochocki to sell almost $4 million of his privately-held QSI
shares during the Class Period and while in possession of material adverse non-
public information about the Company; and (iv) cause Plaintiff and other members
of the Class to purchase QSI securities at artificially inflated prices. In furtherance
of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants jointly and
individually (and each of them) took the actions set forth herein.

91.  Defendants (i) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud;
(i1) made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances

under which they were made, not misleading; and (iii) engaged in acts, practices, |
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and a course of business that operated as a fraud or deceit upon the purchasers of
the Company’s securities during the Class Period in an effort to maintain
artificially high market prices for QSI securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5. Defendants are sued as primary participants in the
wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein. Defendants Plochocki, Holt and
Razin are also sued as controlling persons as alleged below.

92.  Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by
the use, means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails,
engaged and participated in a continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse
material information about the business, operations and future prospects of QSI as
specified herein.

93.  Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while
in possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts,
practices, and a course of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors
of QSI’s value and performance and continued substantial growth, which included
the making of, and the participation in the making of, untrue statements of material
facts and omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements
made about QSI and its business operations énd future prospects' in light of the
circumstances in which they were made, not misleading, as set forth more
particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business
which operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of QSI securities during
the Class Period.

94. Defendant QSI is liable for all materially false and misleading
statements made during the Class Period, as alleged above at §9450-71.

95. | QSI is liable for the false and misleading statements made by QSI
officers during conference calls with investors and analysts as the maker of such
statements and under the principle of respondeat superior.

96.  Defendants Plochocki and Holt, as the most senior officers of the
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Company, and Defendant Razin, as the Company’s Chairman, are liable as direct
participants in the wrongs complained of herein. Through their high-ranking
positions of control and authority as the most senior executive officers and
Chairman of the Company, each of these Defendants was able to control, and did
directly control, the content of the public statements disseminated by QSI. These
Defendahts had direct involvement in the daily business of the Company and
participated in the preparation and dissemination of QSI’s materially false and
misleading statements set forth above.

97. In addition, Defendants Plochocki, Holt and Razin are liable for,
among other material omissions and false and misleading statements, the false and
misleading statements and omissions they made as follows:

Defendant Plochocki:

a. Defendant Plochocki authorized the May 10, 2012 Press Release.
b. Defendant Plochocki signed the June 26, 2012 Letter to Shareholders,
and the July 13 and 23, 2012 Proxy Materials.

c. Defendant Plochocki made statements during numerous conference
calls and other public conferences as alleged herein, including calls
and conferences on May 26, 2011, July 28, 2011, October 27, 2011,
January 9, 2012, January 26, 2012, and May 17, 2012.
Defendant Holt
a. Defendant Holt signed the May 10, 2012 Form 8-K.

b. Defendant Holt made statements during conference calls and other

public conferences as alleged herein, including the call on May 17,
2012.

Defendant Razin

a. Defendant Razin signed the June 26, 2012 Letter to Shareholders, and
the July 13 and 23, 2012 Proxy Materials.
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98.  The allegations in this Complaint establish a strong inference that
Defendants acted with scienter throughout the Class Period in that they had actual
knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of material facts set forth
herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to ascertain
and disclose such facts. Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions were done
knowingly or with recklessness for the purpose ahd effect of concealing QSI’s
operating condition and future business prospects from the investing public and
supporting the artificially inflated price of QSI's securities. As demonstrated by
Defendants’ material misstatements and omissions throughout the Class Period, if
Defendants did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions
alleged herein, they were reckless in failing to obtain such knowledge by recklessly
refraining from taking those steps necessary to discover whether their statements
were false or misleading, even though such facts were available to them.
Specifically, Defendants knew or recklessly disregarded that QSI’s business was
materially slowing during the Class Period, as described more fully above.

99.  Plaintiff and the other members of the Class have suffered damages
in that, in direct reliance on the integrity of the market in which the securities trade
and/or the materially false and misleading statements and omissions made by
Defendants, they paid artificially inflated prices for QSI common stock, which
inflation was removed from the stock when the true facts became known. Plaintiff
and the other members of the Class would not have purchased QSI common stock
at the prices they paid, or at all, if they had been aware that the market price had
been artificially and falsely inflated by Defendants’ misleading statements.

100. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants have violated Section 10(b) of
the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

101.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants” wrongful conduct,
Plaintiff and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with

their respective purchases of QSI securities during the Class Period.
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COUNT II

For Violations Of Section 20(A) Of The Exchange Act
(Against Defendants Plochocki, Holt and Razin)

102.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation set forth

above as if fully set forth herein.

103. Defendants Plochocki, Holt and Razin acted as controlling persons of
QSI within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act, as alleged herein.
By reason of their high-level positions of control and authority as the Company’s
most senior officers and, in the case of Razin, as QSI's Chairman, these
Defendants had the power and authority to influence and control, and did influence
and control, the decision-making and activities of the Company and its employees,
and to cause the Company to engage in the wrongful conduct complained of
herein. These Defendants were able to and did influence and control, directly and
indirectly, the content and dissemination of the public statements made by QSI
during the Class Period, thereby causing the dissemination of the false and
misleading statements and omissions of material facts as alleged herein.
Defendants were provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the
Company’s press releases, public filings and other statements alleged by Plaintiff
to be misleading prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued and had
the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or cause the statements to be
corrected.

104. In their capacities as QSI’s most senior corporate ofﬂcers and
Chairman, and as more fully described above, Defendants Plochocki, Holt and
Razin had direct and supervisory involvement in the day-to-day operations of the
Company and, therefore, are presumed to have had the power to control or
influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities law violations as
alleged herein. These Defendants signed QSI's SEC filings, and were directly

involved in providing false information and certifying and/or approving the false
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statements disseminated by QSI during the Class Period.

105. By virtue of their positions as controlling persons of QSI and as a
result of their own aforementioned conduct, Defendants Plochocki, Holt and Razin,
together and individually, are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act,
jointly and severally with, and to the same extent as the Company is liable under
Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.
Moreover, as detailed above, during the time that Defendants Plochocki, Holt and
Razin exercised control over QSI, each of these Defendants was culpable for the
material misstatements and omissions made by QSI, including such misstatements
as to QSI’s growth prospects, as set forth above.

106. As a direct and proximate result of these Defendants’ misconduct,
Plaintiff and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with
their purchases or acquisitions of QSI securities during the Class Period.

XI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment as follows:

(a) Declaring that this action is a proper class action and certifying Plaintiff
as class representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class
members against all Defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as
a result of Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including
interest thereon; |

(c) Awarding Plaintiff and the other members of the Class their reasonable

costs and expenses incurred in this action, including attorneys’ fees and expert

fees; and

(d) Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and
proper.
XII. JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury of all issues so triable.
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Dated: November 19, 2013

Respectfully submitted,
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